

Santiago - Chile 22 - 26 Octobre

TECHNICAL GUIDE *Version 01/10/2025*



Table of contents

Table of contents	2
1 ORGANISATION	4
1.1 LOCAL ORGANISING COMMITTEE (LOC)	4
1.2 UCI REPRESENTATIVES	4
1.3 COMPOSITION OF THE COMMISSAIRES PANEL	4
1.4 TIMEKEEPING	5
1.5 OFFICIAL ANNOUNCERS	5
1.6 DOPING CONTROL	5
2 GENERAL INFORMATION	6
2.1 TRAVEL AND ACCOMMODATION	6
2.2 VISA	6
2.3 ADDRESS OF THE COMPETITION VENUE	6
2.4 TRACK CHARACTERISTICS	6
2.5 VENUE / INFIELD LAYOUT	7
2.6 ACCOMMODATION	7
2.7 TEAM CATERING AT THE VENUE	7
2.8 MEDICAL - EMERGENCY - LOCAL AUTHORITIES	7
2.9 VOLTAGE	8
2.10 MAP PARKING AREA, ETC	8
2.11 TICKETING AND TEAMS SEATING	10
2.12 ADDITIONAL TEAM SERVICES	10
3 SPORTS TECHNICAL INFORMATION	11
3.1 ACCREDITATION	11
3.2 CONFIRMATION OF STARTERS	11
3.3 TEAM MANAGERS' MEETING AND NATION'S FORUM	11
3.4 TEAMS STORAGE AREA	12
3.5 TEAM BOXES	13
3.6 TEAM CHANGING ROOMS	13
3.7 TEAM PERFORMANCE ANALYSTS	13
4 MEDIA	14
4.1 MEDIA CENTRE	14
4.2 INTERVIEW ZONE	14
5 DROGRAMME	1/1



5.1 OFFICIAL TRAINING	14
5.2 VENUE SCHEDULE	15
5.3 PROVISIONAL COMPETITION SCHEDULE	17
6 EVENT-SPECIFIC REGULATIONS	17
6.1 ARTICLE 1 - GENERAL RULES	17
6.2 ARTICLE 2 - EVENTS REGULATIONS	18
6.3 ARTICLE 3 - AWARDS	18
6.4 ARTICLE 4 - ANTI-DOPING	19
6.5 ARTICLE 5 - PENALTIES	19
6.6 ARTICLE 6 - RESPONSIBILITIES	19



1 | ORGANISATION

1.1 LOCAL ORGANISING COMMITTEE (LOC)

UGED Unidad de Grandes Eventos Deportivos del IND (Instituto Nacional del Deporte), COCH – Comité Olímpico de Chile and Federación Deportiva Nacional de Ciclismo de Chile.

Website event: www.ucichile2025.org
Email: santiago2025track@ind.cl

Contact 1: Elaine Sirydakis

Telephone: +5543988003594 (WhatsApp only) / +56 9 81998544 (Calls and SMS)

Contact 2: Sergio Gili

Telephone: +56 9 42096116 (Calls, SMS and WhatsApp)

COMMITTEE

LOC President (COCH)

General Manager (COCH)

Event Director (UGED)

Sporting Director

General Administration

Track Manager

Miguel Ángel Mujica

Loreto Santa Cruz

Gustavo San Martín

Elaine Sirydakis

Erica Lang

Sergio Gili

Venue CoordinatorFrancisca GonzalezVolunteersEfraim Gonzalez

Sales / Marketing / Media Erica Lang

Accreditation Area Francisca Valdés
LOC Press Officer / Photographer Eduardo Urtubia

1.2 UCI REPRESENTATIVES

UCI Management Committee Enrico Della Casa (ITA) Vice President

UCI Sports Director

UCI Track Manager

UCI Track Coordinator

UCI Technical Delegate

UCI Medical Director

Peter Van den Abeele

Jessika Grand Bois

Hélder Ferreira

Cyrille Tronche

Xavier Bigard

1.3 COMPOSITION OF THE COMMISSAIRES PANEL

APPOINTED BY THE UCI

UCI Commissaire - President
UCI Commissaire - Judge Referee
UCI Commissaire - Judge Referee
UCI Commissaire - Judge Referee
UCI Commissaire - Starter
UCI Commissaire - Secretary
UCI Commissaire - Member
UCI Commissaire - Member
Adrien Lévesque
Paul Watson
Marek Soltysiak
David Menzies
UCI Commissaire - Secretary
UCI Commissaire - Member
Iverson Ladewig



UCI Commissaire - Member Erin Criglington
UCI Commissaire - Member Michael Pinkoski
UCI Commissaire - Technical Commissaire Randal Shaffer

UCI Commissaire - Technical Commissaire Rainer Nühlen Thissen

APPOINTED BY COPACI/NATIONAL FEDERATION

UCI Commissaire Hector Fabio Arcila
UCI Commissaire Andrew Paradowski

UCI Commissaire
National Commissaire
Eduardo Correa
National Commissaire
Francia Bretti
National Commissaire
National Commissaire
National Commissaire
National Commissaire
Victor Morán

National Commissaire Constanza Gonzales

National Commissaire José Muñoz
National Commissaire Juan Moraga
National Commissaire Alvaro Monares
National Commissaire Marcelo Rodriguez

Derny Pilot Murilo Moraes / Sergio Gili

Judge Referee OperatorChris PeaseJudge Referee Assistant OperatorGus Flokin

1.4 TIMEKEEPING

Official timekeeping Tissot Timing

1.5 OFFICIAL ANNOUNCERS

English speaker Carl Lawrenson
Local speaker Sidney White

1.6 DOPING CONTROL

The doping controls will be organised under the responsibility of the International Testing Agency (ITA).



2 | GENERAL INFORMATION

2.1 TRAVEL AND ACCOMMODATION

The 2025 Tissot UCI Track World Championships will be hosted in Santiago, Chile.

Nearest airports

<u>Santiago – Arturo Merino Benítez International Airport (SCL):</u>

The Arturo Merino Benítez airport (SCL) is located northeast of the city of Santiago. It is located 16 km away from Downtown Santiago and 40 km away from the velodrome. On their <u>website</u>, travellers will find updated information on their terminals, parking, and flight schedules, among others.

Transfers from/to the airport to the accommodation/velodrome

LOC can arrange the transfer.
Contact: Paola Oyanedel Altamiro

Telephone: +56 9 9138 5058 E-mail: pao.oyanedel@gmail.com

All participants must hold a valid passport or identity card.

2.2 VISA

Each federation is responsible for obtaining documents for their delegation's appropriate entries. The details of the nationalities that require entry permits to Chile are published on the <u>website of the Chilean consulates</u>.

For all invitation letter requests, please get in touch with the LOC: santiago2025track@ind.cl All riders and attendants must hold insurance valid in Chile.

2.3 ADDRESS OF THE COMPETITION VENUE

Velódromo Peñalolén

Parque Peñalolén - Avenida José Arrieta 7659, Santiago Metropolitan Región, Chile

2.4 TRACK CHARACTERISTICS

Type: Indoor – covered

Length: 250m Width: 7.05

Surface: Kerto (Finnforest)

Bend inclination: 40.8°

Straight inclination: Maximum 12°



2.5 VENUE / INFIELD LAYOUT

TBP

2.6 ACCOMMODATION

Hotel arrangements are available via email: santiago2025hotel@ind.cl

A shuttle service will be provided between the velodrome and hotels, **only** for teams booking the accommodation and transport packages via LOC. The service will be available starting the morning of the first official training. The schedule will be posted at the hotels, velodrome entrance, and accreditation centre.

More information can be found on the UCI web site.

2.7 TEAM CATERING AT THE VENUE

Official training days

During official training days, no food purchase services will be available at the venue. However, the organization may indicate possibilities if prior requests are submitted.

Competition days

During competition days, a food court will be available in the Fan Fest area.

2.8 MEDICAL - EMERGENCY - LOCAL AUTHORITIES

Emergencies:

Ambulance telephone: 131
Police telephone: 133
Fire department: 132

Hospital

Hospital Militar Santiago

Av. Alcalde Fernando Castillo Velasco 9100, La Reina, Región Metropolitana

Telephone: (2) 2331-6000

Distance to the velodrome: 2.6 km

Clinica Universidad de Los Andes

Av Plaza 2501, Las Condes, Región Metropolitana

Telephone: (2) 2618-3100

Distance to the velodrome: 11.4 km

The organisation provides a medical team as follows:



A team of doctors and paramedics will be on-site throughout official training sessions and competition days. During official training and competition days, the medical team, via Clinica Los Andes, will be based in the track centre.

The medical team will also exclusively use a first aid room on the ground floor.

Race doctor: Dr. Manuel Pelegrini - +56 9 9779-5613

Emergency medical care is available outside official training and competition sessions through the national public health system. They are contacted in an emergency by dialling 131.

Venue evacuation

If the building needs to be evacuated, please follow the instructions of the security and stewarding personnel. Please exit the building calmly and quickly.

Riders' safety outside the velodrome

- Traffic will ride on the right side of the road.
- In most cases, separate bicycle paths are available, mostly red.
- After sunset, you will require a front and back light for your bike when it's dark.
- Ensure you adhere to all road signs and not ride on the sidewalks. This is illegal and may result in a fine.
- Please ensure you have your ID when you are outside the venue.

Attention: It is not recommended to ride a bicycle to and from the velodrome from the hotel area.

2.9 VOLTAGE

220-230 V Plug type: C / L

2.10 MAP PARKING AREA, ETC.

Teams and accredited media must use the designated parking space near the container village to ensure efficient parking arrangements.

The reserved parking lots can be easily located following the Teams' signs.

Upon arrival, teams, crew, and media should go to the Accreditation Centre, located at the **Centro Ceremonial de Pueblos Indígenas (Av. José Arrieta 7659, Peñalolén, next to the velodrome)**, to collect their accreditation.



FROM THE ACCREDITATION CENTRE TO THE VELODROME BY CAR 1,8KM (3 Min.)



Please remember that the parking area, and the container village are behind the building. Access through Calle Volcán Antuco, 8074, Peñalolén.

FROM THE ACCREDITATION CENTRE TO THE VELODROME (PARKING SPOT) BY WALK 750M (7-10min.)





2.11 TICKETING AND TEAMS SEATING

Tickets are on sale via the website.

After showing their accreditation, athletes and staff can enter the stands.

2.12 ADDITIONAL TEAM SERVICES

Rollers

The LOC will provide 15 rollers that riders can use for free in the warm-up tent outside de velodrome, near to the infield's entrance. Rollers may not be taken outside this area.

Warm-up

Riding bicycles in the corridors of the velodrome is always prohibited. Bicycles are only to be ridden within the warm-up zone and on the track.

Rider Ice Baths

The LOC will not supply ice baths; the teams are responsible for providing them. A dressing room can be arranged; please get in touch with the track manager on +56.942096116.



3 | SPORTS TECHNICAL INFORMATION

3.1 ACCREDITATION

Accreditations can be collected starting from Monday, October 20th, at the accreditation centre located at Centro Ceremonial de Pueblos Originarios de Peñalolén: Av. José Arrieta, 7910280 Peñalolén, Región Metropolitana, Chile. *(See map on page 9)*

Please ensure you collect your accreditation as soon as you arrive at Velódromo Peñalolén. Access is required to all parts of the venue.

Accreditation must be worn and visible whenever you pass through accreditation controls.

Date	Accreditation Ce	ntre Operation Hours
Monday 20 October, 2025	08:3	0 - 18:00
Tuesday 21 October, 2025	08:30 - 18:00	
Wednesday 22 October, 2025	08:30 - 15:30	17:00 - 20:00
Thursday 23 October, 2025	10:00 - 13:00	17:00 - 20:00
Friday 24 October, 2025	10:00 - 13:00	16:30 - 19:00
Saturday 25 October, 2025	10:00 - 13:00	16:30 - 19:00
Sunday 26 October, 2025	10:00 - 15:00	

Please note all requests will need to be done through the GetYourEvent platform.

The permanence is located on first floor near the official's entrance. Important event information, such as training schedules, team cabins, car parking, messages, and lost properties, can be found there.

3.2 CONFIRMATION OF STARTERS

Date Tuesday, October 21st, 2025

Time 10.00h until 12.00h

Location Commissaire's room, first floor.

Team managers must confirm all starters, present all licenses and provide a sample of the team's clothing.

3.3 TEAM MANAGERS' MEETING AND NATION'S FORUM

What Team Manager's Meeting

Date Tuesday, October 21st

Time 19.30h

Location Centro Ceremonial de Pueblos Originarios de Peñalolén

Address Av. José Arrieta, 7910280 Peñalolén, Región Metropolitana, Chile



From the Velodrome Rider's Entrance to the Centro Ceremonial de Pueblos Originarios de Peñalolén 550m (6-8 min walking)



Riders' numbers will be distributed during this meeting.

Attendance is required for:

- UCI Track Coordinator
- UCI Commissaires
- UCI Technical Delegate
- Event director
- 1 team manager per team (we request a maximum representation of two people per nation attending the meeting).

What Nation's Forum

Date Tuesday, October 21st

Time 20:00h

Location Centro Ceremonial de Pueblos Originarios de Peñalolén

Address Av. José Arrieta, 7910280 Peñalolén, Región Metropolitana, Chile

3.4 TEAMS STORAGE AREA

Teams will be allocated storage containers based on the number of riders they have entered. The containers are located near to the parking sport, as indicated on the map TBP, and are equipped with lighting. Night security will be in the team containers area starting Friday, October 17th.

If teams arrive before the event, they should contact santiago2025track@ind.cl.

Teams can access the storage compound **from Thursday, October 16**th. The Team Containers Coordinator will meet each team upon arrival and lead them to their designated container. It is crucial that teams only use the container assigned to them, as some smaller teams may have to share containers due to space constraints and the number of teams entered.



A security deposit of U\$50 in cash per key is required. Teams must sign their keys back in by 12:00 h on Monday, October 27th, at the latest.

Lost or unreturned keys will result in a charge of U\$50 per key. The deposit will be refunded once the team container has been inspected and left in the same condition as when it was issued. If the team container sustains damage, the deposit will not be refunded, and additional repair costs may be incurred.

3.5 TEAM BOXES

Infield boxes are available from Saturday, October 18th. The velodrome will be open from 07:00 until 20:00. Team boxes are allocated in the infield, considering each team's size. Due to the large number of people in the track centre, space is limited. We kindly ask you to keep to your allocated area.

A warm-up tent with extra team boxes with the same structure as the infield will be set up outside, near the ramp entrance of the velodrome and will provide <u>extra space</u> for teams with a larger number of riders, due to the limited space inside the velodrome.

Fire Regulations insist that corridors in the track centre be maintained for emergency evacuation purposes. Please ensure that equipment does not excessively narrow or block walkways to ensure the track centre can be cleared quickly and safely in an emergency.

Team boxes will have one table and enough chairs. No furniture is to be removed from the allocated box or chained up.

Power supply in the team boxes

Team boxes will be powered with 220-230V. The venue requires that all electrical equipment meet Chilean standards to meet safety requirements. Teams must have all appliances tested and tagged by a qualified electrician. Please do not plug extension leads into this socket or kettles, coffee machines, or fan heaters, as they use high power consumption and may cause the supply to fail.

3.6 TEAM CHANGING ROOMS

Male and female changing rooms and shower facilities are available at the ground level. Restrooms will also be available near the warm-up tent.

3.7 TEAM PERFORMANCE ANALYSTS

An area for Performance Analysts at the backstraight will be provided. However, availability is limited. Teams wishing to use this facility must book their positions through the email: santiago2025track@ind.cl

This service will be charged at U\$100 per cable, to be paid on site.



Please note: Bookings will be made on a first-come, first-served basis.

4 | MEDIA

4.1 MEDIA CENTRE

The Media Centre is located in the infield.

Accreditation is necessary to access the Media Centre. To apply for media accreditation, please send an email to: santiago2025track@ind.cl

Please ensure you collect your accreditation as soon as you arrive at the Velodrome. It is required for access to all parts of the venue. Accreditations must be worn and visible whenever you pass through accreditation controls.

The Media Guide contains all the necessary information about the photo bibs and other helpful information.

4.2 INTERVIEW ZONE

Next to the Media Centre, a mixed zone will be organised and open to the media.

5 | PROGRAMME

5.1 OFFICIAL TRAINING

Official training schedule

Saturday	October 18th	08.40h - 18.00h
Sunday	October 19th	09.00h - 19.30h
Monday	October 20th	09.00h - 19.30h
Tuesday	October 21st	09.00h - 19.30h

<u>Note</u>: The detailed schedule of official training sessions will be published on the UCI website after registration.

Training behind a derny or motorbike is prohibited during official training, and using the start gates is not permitted.

Standing starts are permitted during official training sessions, under the following conditions:

- on the home straight only;
- with the assistance of someone waving a flag at the exit of the 4th bend to warn the other riders present on the track;
- with the approval of the UCI Technical Delegate and/or commissaires overseeing the training sessions.



The operations mentioned above will be monitored by commissaires and/or the UCI Technical Delegate. The UCI will publish further details and instructions for the official training sessions closer to the competition.

During competition

Training and warming-up times before the first session of the day and between the two sessions will be confirmed after the team managers' meeting.

Official training times are available under paragraph 5.1 & 5.2.

Unofficial training sessions

Unofficial training sessions will be available from October 10 to 17, with limited use. To schedule, please contact santiago2025track@ind.cl. A fee of US\$ 15 per rider, per hour of use, will be charged.

5.2 VENUE SCHEDULE

The venue schedule outlined below includes the in-competition training sessions and the competition schedule. Please note that both are subject to change depending on the number of riders. Following the confirmation of starters, please refer to the official communiqués for the final schedule.

OFFICIAL TRAINING SESSIONS

Saturday October 18th

07.00h	Venue open for teams
08.40h - 18.00h	Official training
20 00h	Venue closed

Sunday October 19th

07.30h	Venue open for teams
09.00h - 19.30h	Official training
21.30h	Venue closed

Monday October 20th

07.30h	Venue open for teams
09.00h - 19.30h	Official training
21.30h	Venue closed

Tuesday October 21st

Indígenas (Accreditation Centre)

07.30h	Venue open for teams
09.00h - 19.30h	Official training
10.00h - 12.00h	Confirmation of starters
19.30h - 20.00h	Team managers' meeting – Venue: Centro Ceremonial de Pueblos



20.00h - 21.00h Nation's Forum – Venue: Centro Ceremonial de Pueblos Indígenas

(Accreditation Centre)

23.00h Venue closed

COMPETITION DAYS

Wednesday October 22nd

07.00h	Venue open for teams (riders/staff not allowed on the track)
08.00h - 09.00h	Additional training session (Sprint)
09.00h - 10.00h	Additional training session (Endurance)
10.00h - 10.50h	Warm-up session
11.00h - 16.14h	1st session
17.00h - 17.50h	Warm-up session
17.50h – 18.20h	Opening Ceremony
18.30h - 20.36h	2nd session
23:00	Venue closed
	09.00h - 10.00h 10.00h - 10.50h 11.00h - 16.14h 17.00h - 17.50h 17.50h - 18.20h 18.30h - 20.36h

Thursday October 23rd

07.00h	Venue open for teams (riders/staff not allowed on the track)
10.00h - 10.50h	Warm-up session
11.00h - 13.43h	1st session
14.30h - 15.30h	Additional training session (Group 1)
15.30h - 16.30h	Additional training session (Group 2)
16.30h - 17.20h	Warm-up session
17.30h - 21.00h	2nd session
23.00h	Venue closed

Friday October 24th

07.00h	Venue open for teams (riders/staff not allowed on the track)
10.00h - 10.50h	Warm-up session
11.00h - 13.55h	1st session
14.00h - 15.00h	Additional training session (Group 1)
15.00h - 16.00h	Additional training session (Group 2)
16.00h - 16.50h	Warm-up session
17.00h - 20.59h	2nd session
23.00h	Venue closed

Saturday October 25th

07.00h	Venue open for teams (riders/staff not allowed on the track)
10.00h - 10.50h	Warm-up session
11.00h - 15.43h	1st session
15.30h - 16.30h	Additional training session
16.00h - 17.20h	Warm-up session
17.30h - 21.10h	2nd session



23.00h Venue closed

Sunday October 26th

07.00h	Venue open for teams (riders/staff not allowed on the track)
10.00h - 10.50h	Warm-up session
11.00h - 12.11h	1st session
12.30h - 13.20h	Warm-up session
13.30h - 17.18h	2nd session
21.00h	Venue closed

5.3 PROVISIONAL COMPETITION SCHEDULE

Please refer to the UCI Website

6 | EVENT-SPECIFIC REGULATIONS

6.1 ARTICLE 1 - GENERAL RULES

1.1 The Union Cycliste Internationale (UCI), in cooperation with UGED and the Chilean Federation, will organize the 2025 Tissot UCI Track World Championships for the following disciplines:

MEN	WOMEN	
 1km Time Trial Individual Pursuit Team Pursuit Team Sprint Scratch Race Omnium Sprint Keirin Madison Points Race Elimination Race 	 1km Time Trial Individual Pursuit Team Pursuit Team Sprint Scratch Race Omnium Sprint Keirin Madison Points Race Elimination Race 	

- 1.2 Registrations must be submitted by the National Federations.
- 1.3 Team managers may forward modifications to the Secretary of the College of Commissaires until the start of the first competition session on the day of each event.
- 1.4 In accordance with the UCI, riders in the following categories— second-year juniors and Elite—may participate in the competition.



1.5 **Body numbers - Clothes**

The riders must use the body numbers that the organization will supply. Body numbers may not be folded or altered.

Riders must compete in their national jersey.

Riders shall wear one (1) body number in the following events:

1km Time Trial, Individual Pursuit, Team Pursuit (each rider one number), Team Sprint (each rider one number)

Riders shall wear two (2) body numbers in all other races, Omnium included.

Riders competing in Madison will receive dedicated body numbers.

Pinless number systems

Bunch events: numbers must be placed on the outer layer of clothing Individual Pursuit, 1km Time Trial, Team Pursuit, Team Sprint: number pockets are permitted.

1.6 **Publication**

The teams 'announcement boards will have all results, rankings, and communiqués.

Results will also be published on the event and official live timing websites: https://www.tissottiming.com/

1.7 As per UCI Regulation 1.3.023, any rider of height 1.80m and taller, who wishes to apply for height exemption for handlebar extensions, must submit a 'Rider Attestation Application'-form to the UCI 15 days prior the competition, to appear on the 'UCI Official List of Riders in Category 2 & 3 Height'-document. The technical commissaire will decide if measurements will be done at the championships.

6.2 ARTICLE 2 - EVENTS REGULATIONS

2.1 Sprint, Individual Pursuit, Time Trial, Point Race, Keirin, Scratch Race, Team Pursuit, Team Sprint, Omnium, Madison, and Elimination.

The UCI Regulations and format of the UCI World Championships will be used to conduct all the above-mentioned championships.

2.2 The seeding for all the above-mentioned Championships will be done according to the UCI Regulations article 3.2.021 bis. The current UCI World Champion of the discipline can be seeded in the first position.

6.3 ARTICLE 3 - AWARDS

3.1 Jersey and medals

Every World Championship will be awarded for:



The 1st place - Champion(s) jersey and gold medal

The 2nd place - Silver medal The 3rd place - Bronze medal

Winners are obliged to be on time for the awards ceremony.

Riders must present themselves in race clothing, wearing their national jersey, and not wear a helmet, a cap, a headband, or glasses until they leave the podium ceremony area.

PRIZE MONEY

MEN / WOMEN

Place	Individual events (Olympic)	Individual events (non-Olympic)	Team Sprint	Team Pursuit	Madison
1st	€8.000	€5.000	€12.000	€16.000	€8.000
2nd	€4.000	€2.500	€6.000	€8.000	€4.000
3rd	€2.000	€1.250	€3.000	€4.000	€2.000

6.4 ARTICLE 4 - ANTI-DOPING

4.1 The anti-doping regulations are entirely applicable to the event.The anti-doping tests will occur at the Anti-Doping Station on the ground floor.

Doping control will be the responsibility of the International Testing Agency (ITA).

6.5 ARTICLE 5 - PENALTIES

5.1 The UCI penalty scale is the only one applicable.

6.6 ARTICLE 6 - RESPONSIBILITIES

- 6.1 The UCI rules will apply to all cases not covered by these regulations. Any problems will be solved between the organizers, the Commissaires Panel, and UCI Officials.
- 6.2 Please be mindful that many of the event personnel you will encounter at the venue are volunteers so please treat them with courtesy, as without them the event would not be able to happen.